
Real Estate Agency 

Equitable Center 

530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, Oregon  97301-2505 

Phone: (503) 378-4170 

Regulations Fax: (503) 373-7153 

Admin. Fax: (503) 378-2491 

www.oregon.gov/rea 

         

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Notice of Agenda 

OREGON REAL ESTATE BOARD 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

Oregon Real Estate Agency 

Equitable Center 

530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, OR  97301 

Monday, December 5, 2016 
 

NOTE: The board plans to meet from 10 a.m. until 1:30 p.m., including a “working lunch” period. 

I. BOARD BUSINESS – Chair Hermanski 

A. Call to Order 

B. Chair Hermanski comments/Roll Call 

C. Approval of the Agenda and Order of Business 

D. Approval of 10.3.16, regular meeting minutes 

E. Date of the Next Meeting: 2.6.16 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, Equitable Center, 530 Center St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR  

97301 to begin at 10am. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT – Chair Hermanski 

 This time is set aside for persons wishing to address the Board on matters not on the agenda.  Speakers will be limited to five minutes.   

 The Board Chair reserves the right to further limit or exclude repetitious or irrelevant presentations.  If written material is included, 12 

copies of all information to be distributed to board members should be given to the Board Liaison prior to the meeting.  

 Action will not be taken at this meeting on citizen comments.  The Board, however, after hearing from interested citizens, may place 

items on a future agenda so proper notice may be given to all interested parties.  

  If no one wishes to comment, the next scheduled agenda item will be considered.       
   

III. REQUESTS FOR WAIVERS – Chair Hermanski. 

A. Joshua L. Fuhrer requests experience waiver for principal broker license. 
 

IV. PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER– Chair Hermanski.  

A. Brix Law LLP, to appear by phone, 
 

V. BOARD ADVICE/ACTION – Commissioner Bentley 

A. February 6 - Salem 

B. April 3 - Salem 

C. June 5 – Lincoln City 

D. August 7 – Klamath Falls 

E. October 2 – Springfield 

F. December 4 – Gresham 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS – Administrative Actions Summary – Chair Hermanski 
 

VII. REPORTS – Chair Hermanski 

A. Commissioner Gene Bentley 

B. Agency division reports-Deputy Commissioner Dean Owens 

1. Regulation Division – Selina Barnes 

2. Land Development Division – Michael Hanifin 

3. Education, Business and Technical Services Division – Dean Owens, Anna Higley, and Maddy Alvarado 
 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS – Chair Hermanski.  Next board meeting:  2.6.16 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, Equitable Center, 530 Center 

St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR  97301 to begin at 10am. 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT – Chair Hermanski 

 

Interpreter services or auxiliary aids for persons with disabilities are available upon advance request. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

I.C. 



Real Estate Agency

Equitable Center, Suite 100

530 Center St. NE

Salem, Oregon  97301‐2505

Phone: (503) 378‐4170

Regulations Fax: (503) 373‐7153

Admin. Fax: (503) 378‐2491

www.oregon.gov/rea

         

 

State of Oregon Real Estate Agency 
 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
October 3, 2016 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chris Hermanski, Chair 
    Jef Farley 
    Alex MacLean 
    Lawnae Hunter 
    Dave Koch 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Coni Rathbone, Vice-Chair 
    Pat Inhat 
    Marcia Edwards 
    Joann Hansen 
 

OREA STAFF PRESENT: Gene Bentley, Commissioner 
    Dean Owens, Deputy Commissioner 
    Selina Barnes, Regulations Division Manager 
    Anna Higley, Business and Technical Services Manager 
    Madeline Alvarado, Customer Service Manager 
    Leandra Hagedorn, Board Liaison  
 

GUESTS PRESENT:  Johanna Altorfer, OMNI Realty Group 
    Laura Bilyeu, Bilyeu and Co. Real Estate 
    Bernice Brownlow, Coldwell Banker Seal 
    Niels Brownlow, Coldwell Banker Seal 
    Joan Buccino, Garden Gate Properties 
    Sue Caicedo, Windermere Bridgeport Realty G 
    Sam Chapman, New Economy Consulting 
    Bonny Crowley, Portland Principal Realty LLC 
    Lorraine DeDonato, Windermere Bridgeport Realty G 
    Michele Gila, Roots Realty 
    Michael Hobson, Berkshire Hathaway HomeService 
    Nicole Koen, Colliers International 
    Rob Levy, Keller Williams Realty Professionals 
    Shannon Lumley, Shannon Lumley, PBLN 
    Lane Mueller, Keller Williams Portland Center 
    Charles Oldham, StewartHomes& Land Inc. 
    Wayne Olson, Olson Group Real Estate 
    Victoria Owen, Kelly Right Real Estate 
    LeeAnn Pack, Pack 1st Properties, Inc. 
    Brian Purnell, Windermere Bridgeport Realty  
    David Richenstein, DAR Properties 
    Charles Smith, ZipRealty Resid. Brokerage 
    Viki Speer, Viki Speer Real Estate 
    David Stewart, Stewart Homs & Land, Inc. 
    Mary Tabor, Tabor Realty Group, LLC 
    Heidi Torkko,Cascade Sotheby’s Int’l Realty 
    Janet Westcott, Oregon First 
    Mark Wheeler, Roots Realty 
    Joshua Williams, Century 21 Wright & Assoc 

HAGEDOLE
Text Box
AGENDA ITEM NO.I. D.



Oregon Real Estate Agency Board Meeting 
October 3, 2016  
Page 2 

 

 

I. BOARD BUSINESS-Chair Hermanski 
A. Call to Order.  Chair Hermanski called the meeting to order at 10:10 am 
B. Chair Hermanski comments/Roll Call.  Chair Hermanski explained the role and function of the board and asked 

each board member to introduce themselves to the audience 
C. Approval of the Agenda and Order of Business. 

MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS AS SUBMITTED BY JEF FARLEY 
SECOND BY DAVE KOCH 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

D. Approval of the 8.1.16, regular draft meeting minutes. 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE 8.1.16 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES APPROVED AS SUBMITTED BY  
LAWNAE HUNTER 
SECOND BY JEF FARLEY 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

E. Date of Next Meeting:  12.5.16 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, Equitable Center, 530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 
Salem, OR  97301 to begin at 10am 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT-Chair Hermanski.  Sam Chapman, Founding Partner of New Economy Consulting, Portland, 
Oregon explained that he is available to real estate industry members who have questions and/or issues regarding the rules 
and regulations related to transactions involving cannabis dispensaries.  He also provided the board with the following 
contact information:  Website:  www.NecOregon.com Email:  Sam@NecOregon.com  Phone:  503-396-9062 
 This time is set aside for persons wishing to address the Board on maters not on the agenda.  Speakers will be limited to 

five minutes. 
 The Board Chair reserves the right to further limit or excluded repetitious or irrelevant presentations.  If written material 

is included, 12 copies of all information to be distributed to board members should be given to the board Liaison prior to 
the meeting. 

 Action will not be taken at this meeting on citizen comments.  The Board, however, after hearing from interested 
citizens, may place items on a future agenda so proper notice may be given to all interested parties. 

 If no one wishes to comment, the next scheduled agenda item will be considered 
 

III. REQUESTS FOR WAIVER-Chair Hermanski.  Waiver Request Log.  None. 
 

IV. PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER – Approval of petition log. 
A. Michelle Moore, to appear in person – Ms. Moore explained that she had nine years of experience in providing 

continuing education courses covering the following topics: real estate consumer protection, risk management, 
dispute resolution, and negotiation, which are considered acceptable course topics. Dave Koch asked Ms. Moore if 
she was familiar with the record keeping requirements involved with being a provider and she responded that she 
was aware of the requirements. 

 

MOTION TO APPROVE BY DAVE KOCH 
SECOND BY LAWNAE HUNTER 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

V. BOARD ADVICE/ACTION-Commissioner Bentley.  Commissioner Bentley asked Dave Koch to address the 
questions/issues that were raised at the PMAR Risk Management Group meeting and OAR Convention.  Mr. Koch 
introduced Exhibit A (OREA Board Meeting) which summarized the information discussed at both PMAR & OAR meetings.  
Commissioner Bentley clarified that the Agency’s primary role is to protect the consumer rather than educate brokers and he 
also explained that the Agency is responsible for reporting the KPM (key performance measure) regarding the required 
education for licensees.    Mr. Koch reviewed Exhibit A and also explained that more education might resolve the training 
issues.  Commissioner Bentley agreed that although additional training would be beneficial, he also stated that the main 
issues related to supervision rather than lack of education.  Jef Farley responded that the changes made to the broker exams 
increased the level of difficulty which results in licensees being more knowledgeable.   Alex MacLean asked Commissioner 
Bentley if it would be beneficial to have two tests, one for commercial and one for residential brokers and Commissioner 
Bentley responded that out of the total number of active licensees, commercial brokers only make up 5 to 6 percent.  Dave 
Koch stated that he agreed that the education process has improved and he also supported the concept of and endorsement 
such as a six month practical review that could be tailored to multiple licensee categories.  Commissioner Bentley explained 
that this type of endorsement should emanate from OAR and industry members.  Chair Hermanski and Lawnae Hunter both 



Oregon Real Estate Agency Board Meeting 
October 3, 2016  
Page 3 

 

 

stated that a review of the process to become a property manager would also be beneficial for consumer protection.  Chair 
Hermanski concluded this agenda item by stating that the board was impressed with the ideas and willingness of the Agency 
to engage in this topic and find a forum that can create positive changes.  

VI. COMMUNICATIONS-Chair Hermanski-Administrative Actions Summary.  No discussion. 
 

VII. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Gene Bentley 

-License counts-Commissioner Bentley summarized licensing statistics/counts 
-Legislative concepts-The Agency convened a group in January to review ORS 696 which resulted in proposed 
housekeeping changes which will be presented to the Legislature in February. 
-Rule review-The Agency is currently reviewing a rules and anticipate any changes will be housekeeping in nature 
and will not be modified until the latter part of 2017. 
-Sanctions against licensees for violations-The Agency typically sends out an education letter to licensees who are 
found in violation of rules initially and if compliance does not occur a reprimand letter is sent and as a last resort 
temporary suspension or revocation may occur. 
-CTA audits-The Agency has discovered misuse of funds and various other violations through the CTA audit 
process and in some cases a court appointed receiver has been appointed in an effort to make consumers whole. 
-ARELLO Annual Conference-Agency staff members attended this conference in September and were able to 
network with other regulatory agencies on industry matters 
 

B. Agency division reports-Deputy Commissioner Dean Owens 
1.  Regulation – Selina Barnes.  Ms. Barnes summarized the statistics provided in the board packet     

 and reported that a tutorial on CTA reconciliations would be launching in the near future.  She    
 also announced the following staffing information:  Peter Bale has retired from the Agency; two   
 Recruitments for financial investigator positions will be posted soon; Rob Pierce has assumed the  
 duties of a Compliance Specialist (lead investigator); Denise Lewis and Lindsey Nunes are  
 Compliance Specialists who attended a background check training sponsored by OSP; Frances  
 Hlawatsch and Jeremy Brooks attended the Digital evidence training; and Lindsey Nunes, Aaron  
 Grimes, and Philip Johnson will all be attending the ARELLO Investigator Workshop later this  
 Month. 

2.   Land Development Division – Deputy Commissioner Dean Owens explained that the Land   
  Development division is responsible for condominium filings, timeshare registry, membership     
  campgrounds, homeowner and condo association annual reports, stated that filings have    
  slightly increased, and he also summarized the statistics provided in the board packet.  

3.   Education, Business and Technical Services Division – Dean Owens introduced OREA staff    
  members Anna Higley, Business and Technical Services Manager and Madeline Alvarado,   
  Licensing Customer Service Manager.  Mr. Owens also provided a budget update and    
  summarized the statistics provided in the board packet. 

 
 

II. ANNOUNCEMENTS - Chair Hermanski.  Next board meeting:  12.5.16 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, Equitable 
Center, 530 Center St.NE, Suite 100, OR  97301 to begin at 10am 
 

III. ADJOURNMENT - Chair Hermanski.  Meeting adjourned 12:24pm 
 
 

Respectfully submitted:    Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
  
Exhibits distributed:   
OREA Board Meeting, and Agenda Item No. Exhibit A. 





 1 

 
 

OREGON REAL ESTATE BOARD 
Experience Requirement Waiver Request Log 

2016 
 

2016 
2.1.16 Tim Rist PB Denied FACTS:  Mr. Rist appeared and Chair Hermanski asked him to provide any additional information he felt the board 

should consider regarding his waiver request.  Mr. Rist acknowledged that although he may not have a lengthy amount 

of experience, he did have the volume of transaction experience.  Dave Koch asked Mr. Rist to explain the process he 

has in place for client trust accounts.  Mr. Rist responded that he uses a spreadsheet of incoming funds and outgoing 

funds.  Chair Hermanski responded that the three year experience requirement is in place to establish sufficient 

collective experience and Mr. Rist should gain more transaction experience during the remainder of his three year 

requirement.  Marcia Edwards explained her concern was with the lack of management experience as well as dispute 

resolution.  Pat Ihnat explained she also had concerns with Mr. Rist still needing supervision.  Joann Hansen stated that 

the three year experience requirement is imperative for principal brokers.  Lawnae Hunter responded that she was not 

compelled to waive the three year requirement based on the information provided by Mr. Rist. 

DISCUSSION:  Joann Hansen stated that in her opinion Keller Williams should be granting the approval and not the 

board.  Mr. Koch suggested that Mr. Rist take advantage of the three year requirement and gain more experience.  

Marcia Edwards clarified that our mission is to protect consumers. 

MOTION TO DENY THE REQUEST FOR WAIVER SUBMITTED BY TIM RIST BY DAVE KOCH 

SECOND BY LAWNAE HUNTER 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
4.4.16 Dahe Good PB Approved FACTS:  Ms. Good explained that she had held a number of positions in the real estate industry as well as owning her 

own real estate development firm for 12 years.    She also stated that her goal is to own her own small firm of realtors.  

Alex MacLean asked Ms. Good how many agents she anticipated to manage and she responded that she would like to 

have four agents in her firm.  Lawnae Hunter asked Ms. Good to provide more detail about her management experience.  

Ms. Good explained that she had specific training for supervising/managing and public agency rules are very explicit.  

Coni Rathbone asked Ms. Good why she did not want to hang her license with a principal broker.   

Ms. Good responded that she wanted to create an atmosphere that focuses on serving clients.   

DISCUSSION:  None.   

MOTION TO APPROVE DAHE GOOD’S REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF EXPERIENCE FOR PRINCIPAL 

BROKER BY DAVE KOCH 

SECOND BY JOANN HANSEN 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 

4.4.16 Lisa Neef PB Denied FACTS:  Ms. Neef explained that she owned a transaction coordination business since 2010.  Coni Rathbone asked Ms. 

Neef to explain in more detail what her business entails.  Ms. Neef explained that she is hired by brokers to assist them 

with their paperwork.  Pat Ihnat asked Ms. Neef if she interacted with clients and she responded that she has minimal 

interaction with clients.  Dave Koch asked Ms. Neef to clarify her role in the transaction process regarding 

confidentiality.  Ms. Neef clarified that her role is an administrative one.   

DISCUSSION:  Ms. Ihnat asked Dave Koch what he felt about the necessity for license.  Mr. Koch responded that in 

his opinion no license due to conflict.  Ms. Ihnat responded situations that included contact with clients may very well 

cause conflict.  Ms. Rathbone explained that a principal broker license is a good idea once Ms. Neef is more seasoned.   

MOTION TO DENY LISA NEEF’S REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF EXPERIENCE FOR PRINCIPAL 

BROKER LICENSE BY MARCIA EDWARDS 

SECOND BY DAVE KOCH 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 

4.4.16  Tim Rist PB Approved FACTS:  Mr. Rist introduced Lionel Wilson, CEO for Keller Williams and asked him to address the board on his 

behalf.  Mr. Wilson explained that he has known Mr. Rist for about 10 years and he has strong leadership skills.  Mr. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

III. 



 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wilson also summarized Mr. Rist’s experience and work history.  Coni Rathbone asked Mr. Rist if he intended to stay 

with Keller Williams.  Mr. Rist responded that he did intend to stay with Keller Williams.  Chair Hermanski and Ms. 

Rathbone both asked Mr. Rist to explain what had occurred since his first appearance to make the board change their 

opinion.  Mr. Rist responded that since his first appearance before the board he has obtained a better understanding of 

ORS Chapter 696, the CTA process, rules.  He also explained that he has been on both sides of disputes (buyer/seller). 

DISCUSSION:  None 

MOTION TO APPROVE TIM RIST’S REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF EXPERIENCE FOR PRINCIPAL 

BROKER BY CONI RATHBONE 

SECOND BY ALEX MACLEAN 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 

6.6.16 William Patten PB Approved FACTS:   Mr. Patten explained that he purchased his firm as a broker two years ago and hired a principal broker to 

supervise who has since left the firm and he is having difficulty finding another principal broker for hire.  He also 

explained that he only has 4 months remaining to fulfill the 3 year experience requirement and has 25 years of 

experience in managing leases.   
DISCUSSION: None. 

MOTION TO APPROVE WILLIAM PATTEN’S REQUEST FOR EXPERIENCE WAIVER FOR PRINCIPAL 

BROKER’S LICENSE BY MARCIA EDWARDS 

SECOND BY PAT IHNAT 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE    

12.5.16 Joshua Fuhrer PB  FACTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

 



HAGEDOLE
Text Box
AGENDA ITEM NO.III. A.





Principal Broker Course Completion Certificate

THIS CERTIFICATE WILL VERIFY THAT:

Joshua Fuhrer

Real Estate License Number: 201219246

Mailing Address of:
6622 SE 29th Ave, Portland, OR 97202

has successfully completed the final examination for the correspondence/Internet study course:

Brokerage Administration and Sales Supervision

The course credit granted is 40 hours on the date of October 19, 2016 at www.OnlineEd.com. The date of
completion is the date the actual Internet study course examination was actually taken and graded. This course is

approved by the Oregon Real Estate Agency to meet the requirements of the Oregon Principal Real Estate Broker -
Brokerage Administration and Sales Supervision 40 hour course required as a prerequisite to obtaining an Oregon

Principal Real Estate Brokers License.

THIS OFFERING IS UNDER THE TOPIC OF
Brokerage Administration and Sales Supervision

OREGON REAL ESTATE AGENCY CERTIFIED CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE

PROVIDER COURSE NUMBER: 1038-1039

THIS COURSE WAS SPONSORED AND THIS CERTIFICATE ISSUED BY:

 

OnlineEd Inc.
N. Jeffrey Sorg, School Director

7405 SW Beveland Road, Portland, OR 97223
mail@OnlineEd.com, http://www.onlineed.com/

Phone: (503) 670-9278 

Certificate Authentication Number: 366613
This certificate is void if the above authentication number cannot be verified by OnlineEd

Click to verify: http://www.onlineed.com/VERIFY?6DD6-8990-0013-60F5-0C55

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

https://www.onlineed.com/system/pages/secure/verify.php?6DD6-8990-0013-60F5-0C55
http://www.tcpdf.org






                    

                                                                
	  
	  

	  
	  

www.citizendevelopment.com	  

Citizen Development Group, Inc. 
PO Box 12404 

Portland, Oregon 97212 

October 24, 2016 
 

Oregon Real Estate Agency  
Board of Directors 
530 NE Center Street NE 
Suite 100 
Salem, Oregon 97301 
 
RE: Principal Broker Experience Requirement Waiver Request 
 
 
Dear Oregon Real Estate Agency Board Members, 
 
My name is Josh Fuhrer, and I respectfully submit for your consideration my Oregon 
Principal Broker Experience Waiver Request. 
 
To begin, I’d like to share some of my real estate experience with you. I have been 
active in commercial real estate in Oregon for the past 20 years. I began my career in 
the mid-1990s managing multifamily and strip retail properties, and over the past 13 
years, I have developed nearly a million square feet of retail, office, industrial, and 
mixed-use projects across the Portland region.  
 
In 1996, I started my career working as the onsite manager of a market rate apartment 
building in downtown Portland. Later, I managed a Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
(LIHTC) project in Northwest Portland, where I learned to appreciate and support the 
day to day challenges of some of our state’s most disadvantaged citizens.   
 
After three years of multifamily management, I moved over to College Housing NW, the 
owner and property manager for a number of student housing buildings on the campus 
of Portland State University. Serving as an asset manager, I learned how to manage 
student housing properties at the portfolio level. I was also fortunate during my time at 
CHNW to dip my toe into the world of real estate development, as we developed two 
student housing buildings totaling over 500 units during my tenure. It was during the 
development of the Broadway Plaza building in 2003 that I fell in love with real estate 
development, and chose to make it my career path. I enrolled in the PSU Graduate 
Certificate in Real Estate Program, which I completed in 2007 (official transcripts 
included herein). 
 
During my first year in the program, I took an internship with a local real estate 
developer. Despite my having limited development experience at the time, he entrusted 
me with the responsibility of managing the rehabilitation of an historic downtown office 
building. A small but very challenging project with a total cost in excess of $10 million, 
the structure required a complete overhaul of the core and shell, as well as a substantial 
seismic upgrade.  
 
My role was to manage the design team from concept through permitting, direct the 



                    
                                                                
	  
	  

                                                            
 
                                                                      www.citizendevelopment.com 

creation of the condominium declaration, CC&Rs, and plat for state approval, 
coordinate construction management with the general contractor, negotiate and 
execute purchase and sale agreements with buyers of office spaces, manage the 
hazardous materials contractor charged with abating a substantial amount of asbestos 
containing materials (ACMs) and lead-based paint, and assemble our state and federal 
Historic Tax Credit application. Our application to the Federal Parks Service and SHPO 
were both approved, allowing us to syndicate tax credits that resulted in nearly $2 
million in tax credit equity for the project. The renovation was completed in 2007. 
 
Following this challenging project, I struck out on my own and formed my own real 
estate development company. In the years that followed, I managed the soup-to-nuts 
development of a LEED Platinum qualifying manufacturing facility that utilized a State of 
Oregon Industrial Revenue Bond, a strip retail center on Hawthorne Blvd., a public 
square in partnership between a city and a nonprofit arts organization, and a creative 
office project in SE Portland, among others.  
 
My scope of responsibility in these projects was not limited just to construction 
management; rather I managed each project from conception. I conducted all relevant 
due diligence including review of title reports, environmental site assessments, 
geotechnical surveys, structural engineer’s reports, appraisals, etc.; developed a variety 
of proforma models; drafted and negotiated partnership agreements, leases, and 
purchase and sale agreements; coordinated 1031 exchanges with our accommodators, 
worked with architects, planners, and a variety of consultants to obtain entitlements 
and permits; negotiated and closed project financing from a variety of public and 
private sources, and managed the construction process including loan draws, change 
orders, and inspections on behalf of my owner-clients.  
 
During this time, I also asset-managed a portfolio of retail properties in four states 
totaling over 600,000 square feet. In this capacity, I became highly proficient in retail 
leasing, lease administration, and commercial property management.  
 
In 2009, I was appointed, and later elected, to the Gresham City Council. During my 
four years on Council, I led the City’s efforts on a number of land use policy decisions 
and urban renewal capital projects. I also served for two years on the Metro regional 
government’s Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC), a stakeholder committee of local 
elected leaders providing advice to the Metro Council on regional land use issues. As a 
result of my private sector and public sector work, in 2010 I received a “Forty Under 40 
Award” from the Portland Business Journal.  
 
In 2012, I completed my Master’s Degree in Real Estate at Georgetown University, with 
a double-concentration in finance and international real estate. As a result of the quality 
of my master’s thesis titled “Modernizing the Multifamily Development Model: Moving 
the Value Proposition from Commoditization to Consumer Experience,” I was awarded 
the Pierre Charles L’Enfant Award for Vision and Leadership in Real Estate Academics; 
an award given to just one student out of the 300 in the program each year. While in 
Washington DC, I also consulted on a number of mixed-use development projects for 
DC-area developers.  
 



                    
                                                                
	  
	  

                                                            
 
                                                                      www.citizendevelopment.com 

in 2013, I resigned my position on Council to become the City’s Director of Urban 
Renewal. In the past three years, we have developed a $55 million mixed-use town 
center in Rockwood, known as Rockwood Rising. This project will break ground in 
Summer 2017, with 40,000sf of office space, 20,000sf of retail space, a 20,000sf public 
market, a 10,000sf maker space, and 100 units of workforce housing. The project also 
includes a number of resources dedicated to creating economic opportunities for 
immigrants and low income families in the most disadvantaged urban neighborhood in 
Oregon.  
 
My role, beyond serving as the Executive Director of the Agency, is to lead the project 
management of Rockwood Rising from concept through tenant recruitment, 
developer/contractor solicitation and selection, community engagement, design and 
permitting, and construction. I am also responsible for obtaining commitments for $10 
million in New Markets Tax Credit financing, as well as working with Senator Richard 
Devlin, Chair of the Oregon Senate’s Ways and Means Committee, and our local state 
legislators, in the City’s efforts to obtain $2 million in Oregon Lottery Bond financing in 
the 2017 session. In addition, we also recently acquired a two-acre parcel across from 
Rockwood Rising that will serve as a second phase of the project in 2019. 
 
In addition to Rockwood Rising, we have also facilitated the development a campus of 
youth & family services for families in Rockwood that includes Open School, and 
alternative school for at-risk youth (Completed June 2016); a new Boys and Girls Club 
(currently under construction); and a new home for Latino Network, a community 
organization dedicated to providing services to Hispanic youth & families (completion in 
2018). I was part of a small team of project partners dispatched to Salem to lobby the 
Legislature for $2 million in State funds for the project, which were successful in 
obtaining.  
 
Today, I continue to lead the urban renewal program for the City of Gresham with an 
internal staff of five, plus a number of external consultants. I also continue my work on a 
number of private development projects throughout the region. In each project, both 
public and private, I am responsible for managing teams of 10-20 people and guiding 
the decision-making process on multi-million dollar projects. My company even has a 
couple of projects on the East Coast with development partners outside of Oregon. It is 
a very exciting time. 
 
In addition to my development work, for over a decade, I have taught two noncredit 
college courses in real estate finance and investment. I have worked on many projects 
that required me to build several financial modeling tools from scratch. These tools 
include development project proformae that include rates of return, cap rate 
calculations, etc.; tools for performing sensitivity analyses in property operating 
proformae to test the effects of vacancy, rental concessions & escalations, etc. on net 
operating income; tools for comparing various loans with fixed and adjustable interest 
rates and varying terms against one another, time value of money and IRR calculations, 
as well as sophisticated waterfall modeling for distribution of profit to limited partners. 
The syllabus for the finance course includes most of the above tools as applied to case 
studies, along with lessons and exercises related to calculating mortgage constants, 
profitability indices, and other financial modeling tools. 



                    
                                                                
	  
	  

                                                            
 
                                                                      www.citizendevelopment.com 

 
I also served on the board of directors of Proud Ground, a community land trust 
dedicated to creating home ownership opportunities for families of modest means in 
Multnomah County. I always strive to develop projects in a socially responsible manner, 
while balancing my need for earning a profit with giving back to others through teaching 
and volunteering.  
 
My work now is expanding into brokerage services as an adjunct, value-added service 
to my development management work, primarily due to the very specific needs of a 
family trust client. This client needs to sell approximately 40 residential properties, likely 
in a portfolio sale to a single buyer, in order to free up the equity required to complete a 
major commercial development project for which I have been retained as developer. 
There will also be a 1031 exchange and the acquisition of replacement properties with 
which they have asked for my assistance as their representative in those transactions.  
 
This particular client lives out of state, is not highly experienced in real estate, does not 
want to work with a traditional brokerage, and is very reluctant to work with anyone 
other than me on this complex transaction. In order to help them reach their goals in a 
manner that is comfortable for them, I am requesting a Principal Broker License. 
Moreover, I have other development clients for whom the added service of real estate 
brokerage is a compelling reason to work with me, and bringing in another broker as 
Principal Broker in those situations creates unnecessary complications in the process 
and in my clients’ opinion of my value to them. My intent is not to work primarily as a 
real estate broker, but to offer my development clients a seamless, vertically integrated 
scope of real estate services. Holding a Principal Broker License would allow me to do 
that, which will increase my perceived value in the eyes of those clients. 
 
It is with the intent to better meet the needs of my development clients that I am 
seeking a Principal Broker License. Time is of the essence due to the large and 
immediate transaction on the table with my family trust client, and in order to serve their 
needs, I need to be able to conduct this and other related transactions as a Principal 
Broker. 
 
Additional information on my real estate experience is included in the pages that follow. 
I hope you’ll find my experience in real estate sufficient to grant the waiver for the three 
years of brokerage experience typically required for the Oregon Principal Broker 
License. Please let me know if any other supporting documentation is required, and I 
would be happy to answer any questions you have. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Josh Fuhrer   
CEO and Director of Real Estate Development 
Citizen Development Group, Inc.  







Over the past 20 years, Josh has developed 
over a million square feet of retail, office, 
industrial, and residential projects, both private 
as well as public/private partnerships. His real 
estate development portfolio includes complex 
new construction, historic renovations, and 
infill projects in urban renewal areas with high 
community interest and visibility.

Josh has also asset-managed several hundred 
thousand square feet of commercial properties 
for private owners. As a result of this and 
his development work, he has successfully 
negotiated dozens of leases and purchase and 
sale agreements.

In addition to his work as a developer, Josh 
is also the Executive Director of the Gresham 
Redevelopment Commission, the urban renewal 
agency for the City of Gresham, Oregon, and a 
former elected official who served as a member 
of the Gresham City Council. As the Urban 
Renewal Director for the city, he leads the City’s 
efforts to redevelop a six-acre site in the heart 
of the Rockwood neighborhood into a vibrant, 
mixed-use town center along the MAX light rail 
line. This project will break ground in June 2017. 
Information about this project may be found at 
www.rockwoodrising.com.

As a Gresham city councilor, he served as the 
council liaison to the city’s Design and Planning 
Commissions, overseeing the creation of 
architectural design standards for the city’s three 
town centers. Josh also served as the Gresham 
representative on the Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) for the Metro regional 
government for two years. In this role, Josh 
heped shape land use policy across the region. 
 
Prior to his service as an elected official, Josh 
served for several years on the board of directors 
of Proud Ground, a nonprofit organization 
dedicated to affordable homeownership. He 
believes that everyone has a role to play in 
making his or her community a better place.

Josh holds a Master’s Degree in Real Estate 
with a double concentration in finance and 
international real estate from Georgetown 
University, where he earned the Pierre Charles 
L’Enfant Award for Vision and Leadership 
in Real Estate Academics. He also holds a 
Graduate Certificate in Real Estate Development 
from Portland State University. In 2010, Josh 
was named one of the Portland Business 
Journal’s Forty Under 40 Award winners. He is 
a member of the Urban Land Institute (ULI) and 
the International Council of Shopping Centers 
(ICSC).

Josh Fuhrer
Professional Biography

http://www.rockwoodrising.com


Josh Fuhrer
REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT + INVESTMENT

503/869.1810
josh@citizendevelopment.com

I am passionate about solving complex real estate challenges with creativity 
and innovation. My work earned me a “Forty Under 40” award from the 
Portland Business Journal in 2010. 

I’m looking to expand my impact in communities across the region, and 
obtaining an Oregon Principal Broker License will help me to do that.

Education
•  Georgetown University
Master of Professional Studies in Real Estate
Emphasis in finance, entrepreneurship, and 
international real estate. 

•  Portland State University
Graduate Certificate, Real Estate Development
Emphasis in sustainable development, mixed-use, 
retail, and transit-oriented development. 

•  Portland State University
Bachelor of Science
Liberal Arts, Arts & Letters, Theatre Arts
(triple major).

Awards + Memberships
•  “Forty Under 40” Award Winner, 2010
Portland Business Journal

•  Holds Oregon real estate broker license

•  Urban Land Magazine profile, “Regeneration 
Through an Urban Food Factory” Jan-Feb 2012

•  Member of the International Council of 
Shopping Centers (ICSC)

•  Member of the Urban Land Institute (ULI)

•  Winner, Georgetown University L’Enfant 
Leaders Award for academic excellence in real 
estate

Volunteer Work
Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC)
(board of elected officials from the region that 
advises Metro on land use policy issues) 
MPAC Committee Member, 2011-2013

Greater Portland Pulse
(economic development nonprofit)
Steering Committee Member, 2009-2011

Gresham Center for the Arts
(arts & culture nonprofit)
Board Vice President, 2006-2009

Portland Community Land Trust
(affordable housing nonprofit)
Board Member, 2004-2006

Experience
Citizen Development Group
Position: CEO and Director of Real Estate Development
•  Led development teams on a variety of commercial real estate projects from 
concept through design, entitlements, construction, sales & leasing. Projects 
include retail, mixed-use, office, & industrial uses, including historic tax credits, 
LEED certification, and public/private partnerships.

Select Projects:
•  Joint venture partner on Island Gardens, a $1 billion mixed-use project in 
Miami, Florida; includes two hotel towers, 300,000 sf of luxury retail, 2,200 stall 
parking structure, 150 condos, and a mega-yacht harbor;

•  Redeveloped a 1932 art deco building into the 45,000 sf Classic Foods World 
Headquarters, one of the first LEED Platinum manufacturing facilities in the US;

•  Asset-managed a portfolio of retail centers in the Western U.S. consisting of 
600,000 sf of GLA.

Gresham Redevelopment Commission
Urban renewal agency for the City of Gresham, Oregon
Position: Executive Director
•  Managed the development of Rockwood Rising, a five-acre mixed use town 
center with four buildings and a public square, from concept through tenant 
recruitment, design, entitlements, and public engagement (construction to start 
in 2017). Secured commitments for $10 million in New Market Tax Credits for 
the project;

•  Acquired an additional two acres adjacent to Rockwood Rising for future 
development;

•  Obtained the agency’s first bond rating (AA) and issued debt obligations to 
restructure the agency’s finances for long term sustainability;

•  Managed the development of the Stark Street Youth Campus, which includes 
a new Boys and Girls Club, Open Meadow alternative school for at-risk youth, 
and family services for low income and Hispanic youth and families.

City of Gresham, Oregon
Gresham is the fourth largest city in Oregon, with a population of 110,000 and 
an annual budget of $400 million 
Position: City Councilor (elected twice)

•  Helped to create a package of small business incentives that enabled over 
80 businesses to open their doors in the downtown core in the first 18 months of 
the program;

•  Helped to craft the city’s multifamily design standards, downtown parking 
strategy, big box retail ordinance, Rockwood neighborhood design 
standards, and citywide housing strategy;

•  Council Liaison to the City’s Design Commission, Planning 
Commission, Historic Resources Subcommittee, and Investment Committee.

2004-present

2013-present

2009-2013



 
Office of the Registrar 
 
Post Office Box 751  503-725-3511 tel 
Portland, Oregon 97207-0751 503-725-5525 fax 
www.pdx.edu/registration 
 

How to Authenticate This Official PDF Transcript  
from Portland State University  

 
 
This official PDF transcript has been transmitted electronically to the recipient, and is intended 
solely for use by that recipient.  If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the 
Registrar’s Office at Portland State University. It is not permissible to replicate this document 
or forward it to any person or organization other than the identified recipient.  Release of this 
record or disclosure of its contents to any third party without written consent of the record 
owner (i.e. the student) is prohibited. 
 
This official transcript has been digitally signed and therefore contains special characteristics.  
If this document has been issued by Portland State University, and is viewed using the latest 
version of Adobe® Acrobat or Adobe® Reader, it will reveal a digital certificate that has been 
applied to the transcript.  This digital certificate will appear in a pop-up screen or status bar on 
the document, display a blue ribbon, and declare that the document was certified by the 
Portland State University, with a valid certificate issued by GlobalSign CA for Adobe®.  This 
document certification can be validated by clicking on the Signature Properties of the 
document. 

 
 
The blue ribbon symbol is your assurance that the digital certificate is valid, the 
document is authentic, and the contents of the transcript have not been altered.   
 

 
If the transcript does not display a valid certification and signature message, reject this 
transcript immediately.  An invalid digital certificate display means either the digital 
signature is not authentic, or the document has been altered.  The digital signature can 
also be revoked by the PSU transcript office if there is cause, and digital signatures can 
expire.  A document with an invalid digital signature display should be rejected. 

 
 

Lastly, one other possible message, Author Unknown, can have two possible meanings: 
The certificate is a self-signed certificate or has been issued by an unknown or 
untrusted certificate authority and therefore cannot be trusted, or the revocation check 
could not complete. If you receive this message make sure you are properly connected 
to the internet.  If you have a connection and you still cannot validate the digital 
certificate on-line, reject this document. 

 
 
The current version of Adobe® Reader is free of charge, and available for immediate download 
at http://www.adobe.com.  
 
If you require further information regarding the authenticity of this transcript, you may email 
or call the Registrar’s Office at Portland State University at transcripts@pdx.edu  or 503-725-
3511. 



SUBJ  NO.               COURSE TITLE           CRED GRD     PTS R
_________________________________________________________________
Institution Information continued:

Summer 2007 Quarter
USP  510       TOP: REAL ESTATE CONSTRUCTION   3.00 A-    11.01
USP  546       REAL ESTATE DEVELOP II          3.00 A     12.00
        Ehrs:  6.00 GPA-Hrs: 6.00   QPts:    23.01 GPA:   3.83
Last Standing: Grad Good Standing
********************** TRANSCRIPT TOTALS ***********************
                  Earned Hrs  GPA Hrs    Points     GPA
TOTAL INSTITUTION      36.00    36.00    139.71    3.88
********************** END OF TRANSCRIPT ***********************

PSU ID

Joshua Fuhrer
Record of:

Date Issued:

10484748-11467281

Joshua Luke Fuhrer

24-OCT-2016Date of Birth: 10-APR981200498

 1Page:

Issued To:

  Course Level: Graduate

 Degree Awarded : Graduate Certificate 08-DEC-2007
            College : Urban & Public Affairs-Col
              Major : Real Estate Development

 SUBJ  NO.               COURSE TITLE           CRED GRD     PTS R
 _________________________________________________________________

 INSTITUTION CREDIT:

 Fall 2001 Quarter
 TA   574       PLAYWRITING I                   4.00 A     16.00
         Ehrs:  4.00 GPA-Hrs: 4.00   QPts:    16.00 GPA:   4.00

 Fall 2004 Quarter
 USP  510       TOP: ENERGY EFFICI BLT ENVIRON  3.00 A     12.00
 USP  584       NEGOTITN PUBLIC SECT            4.00 A-    14.68
         Ehrs:  7.00 GPA-Hrs: 7.00   QPts:    26.68 GPA:   3.81

 Winter 2005 Quarter
 FIN  539S      REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL           3.00 A-    11.01
 USP  598       INTRO FIN & REAL ESTATE         3.00 A     12.00
         Ehrs:  6.00 GPA-Hrs: 6.00   QPts:    23.01 GPA:   3.83

 Spring 2005 Quarter
 USP  504       INTERN: DEVELOPER               3.00 A     12.00
 USP  599       REAL ESTATE FIN & INVEST        3.00 A-    11.01
         Ehrs:  6.00 GPA-Hrs: 6.00   QPts:    23.01 GPA:   3.83

 Spring 2007 Quarter
 USP  523       REAL ESTATE DEV I               3.00 A     12.00
 USP  573       HOUSING ECONOMICS               4.00 A     16.00
         Ehrs:  7.00 GPA-Hrs: 7.00   QPts:    28.00 GPA:   4.00
 ******************** CONTINUED ON NEXT COLUMN *******************

*****3052SSN

This official transcript does not require a raised seal.

Cynthia H. Baccar
Registrar
Portland State University



SUBJ  NO.               COURSE TITLE           CRED GRD     PTS R
_________________________________________________________________
Institution Information continued:
        Ehrs:  6.00 GPA-Hrs: 6.00   QPts:    16.02 GPA:   2.67

Spring 1997 Quarter
MUS  191       BEG GUITR I:NON-MAJ             2.00 P      0.00
TA   253       WORKSHOP THEATER I              2.00 A      8.00
TA   342       INTERMEDIATE ACTING             4.00 B+    13.32
TA   355       WRKSHP II-MGT/PUB RE            2.00 B-     5.34
        Ehrs: 10.00 GPA-Hrs: 8.00   QPts:    26.66 GPA:   3.33

Fall 1997 Quarter
TA   111       FUND TECHNICAL TH               2.00 A      8.00
TA   114       TECH THEATER LAB                2.00 A      8.00
TA   353       WRKSHP II-ACT/DIRCTG            2.00 A      8.00
        Ehrs:  6.00 GPA-Hrs: 6.00   QPts:    24.00 GPA:   4.00

Winter 1998 Quarter
TA   112       FUND TECHNICAL TH               2.00 A      8.00
TA   115       TECH THEATER LAB                2.00 A      8.00
UNST 421       CAP: APPLD FLD WK I             3.00 B+     9.99
        Ehrs:  7.00 GPA-Hrs: 7.00   QPts:    25.99 GPA:   3.71

Spring 1998 Quarter
HST  410U      UDC: AMER TECHNOLOGY            4.00 P      0.00
HST  444U      HST PACIFIC NORTHWST            4.00 P      0.00
TA   316       TECH THEATER LAB                2.00 A      8.00
TA   471U      TH: AMER TH/DRAMA               4.00 A-    14.68
UNST 421       CAP: APPLD FLD WK-II            3.00 B+     9.99
        Ehrs: 17.00 GPA-Hrs: 9.00   QPts:    32.67 GPA:   3.63

Fall 2001 Quarter
ENG  201       SHAKESPEARE                     4.00 A     16.00
IT   101       FIRST YEAR ITALIAN              4.00 W      0.00
********************* CONTINUED ON PAGE  2  ********************

PSU ID

Joshua Fuhrer
Record of:

Date Issued:

10484748-11467281

Joshua Luke Fuhrer

24-OCT-2016Date of Birth: 10-APR981200498

 1Page:

Issued To:

  Course Level: Undergraduate

 Degree Awarded : Bachelor of Science 14-JUN-2003
            College : College of the Arts
              Major : Theater Arts
              Major : Arts and Letters
            College : College of the Arts
              Major : Liberal Studies

 SUBJ  NO.               COURSE TITLE           CRED GRD     PTS R
 _________________________________________________________________

 TRANSFER CREDIT:

 F92-S93              RIPON C
  Ehrs:  36.00

 S96                  MT HOOD CC
  Ehrs:   6.00

 F93-F95              U S COLLEGE NOT CODED
  Ehrs:  89.00

 200301-0301          *OLD CODE*  Use CLEP
  Ehrs:   8.00

 INSTITUTION CREDIT:

 Fall 1996 Quarter
 TA   311       BACKGROUND-SCENE DES            4.00 C-     6.68
 TA   321       FUND STAGE COSTUMING            4.00 A-    14.68
 TA   364       DIRECTING I                     4.00 B     12.00
 TA   464W      DEVELOP DRAMATIC ART            4.00 D      4.00
         Ehrs: 16.00 GPA-Hrs: 16.00  QPts:    37.36 GPA:   2.33

 Winter 1997 Quarter
 TA   252       MAKEUP                          2.00 B-     5.34
 TA   330       MULTICULT THEATER               4.00 B-    10.68
 ******************** CONTINUED ON NEXT COLUMN *******************

*****3052SSN

This official transcript does not require a raised seal.

Cynthia H. Baccar
Registrar
Portland State University



PSU ID

********************** TRANSCRIPT TOTALS ***********************
                  Earned Hrs  GPA Hrs    Points     GPA
TOTAL INSTITUTION     115.00   105.00    354.07    3.37
********************** END OF TRANSCRIPT ***********************

Record of:

Date Issued:

Joshua Luke Fuhrer

24-OCT-2016Date of Birth: 10-APR981200498

 2Page:

SUBJ  NO.               COURSE TITLE           CRED GRD     PTS R
_________________________________________________________________
Institution Information continued:
        Ehrs:  4.00 GPA-Hrs: 4.00   QPts:    16.00 GPA:   4.00

Winter 2002 Quarter
ENG  202       SHAKESPEARE                     4.00 A     16.00
TA   475       PLAYWRITING II                  4.00 A-    14.68
        Ehrs:  8.00 GPA-Hrs: 8.00   QPts:    30.68 GPA:   3.83

Spring 2002 Quarter
TA   408       WKSP: NEW PLAY DEVELOPMENT      4.00 A-    14.68
TA   409       PRAC: NEW PLAY-ACTING           4.00 B     12.00
        Ehrs:  8.00 GPA-Hrs: 8.00   QPts:    26.68 GPA:   3.33

Fall 2002 Quarter
ENG  305       TOP: HISTORY OF CINEMA I        4.00 A     16.00
ENG  316       THE SHORT STORY                 4.00 B+    13.32
PS   318U      MEDIA/OPINION/VOTING            4.00 A-    14.68
        Ehrs: 12.00 GPA-Hrs: 12.00  QPts:    44.00 GPA:   3.66

Winter 2003 Quarter
ANTH 315U      AMERICAN CULTURE                4.00 A     16.00
PS   399       SPST: FILM AND POLITICS         4.00 A     16.00
PS   426       POLITICS OF THE NEWS            4.00 A     16.00
        Ehrs: 12.00 GPA-Hrs: 12.00  QPts:    48.00 GPA:   4.00

Spring 2003 Quarter
FIN  439       REAL ESTATE APPRAISL            3.00 C      6.00
PA   410       TOP:  GRANTWRITING              3.00 A     12.00
USP  410       TOP: REAL ESTATE MARKET         3.00 B-     8.01
        Ehrs:  9.00 GPA-Hrs: 9.00   QPts:    26.01 GPA:   2.89
Last Standing: Good Standing
******************** CONTINUED ON NEXT COLUMN *******************

*****3052SSN

This official transcript does not require a raised seal.

Cynthia H. Baccar
Registrar
Portland State University



ACCREDITATION 
Portland State University is accredited by the Northwest 
Association of Schools and Colleges. In addition, numerous 
schools, colleges, and departments within the university are 
accredited by special agencies and associations. 
 
FORMER NAMES 
Established in 1946 as Vanport Extension Center, the name 
changed in 1952 to Portland Extension Center, and in 1955 to 
Portland State College. On February 14, 1969, the institution was 
named Portland State University. Portland State University is one 
of the institutions comprising the Oregon University System 
(OUS), organized in 1932. 

COURSE NUMBERING SYSTEM 
0-99 Basic courses, no degree credit 
100-299 Lower Division 
300-499 Upper Division 
500-699 Graduate 
700 Post-baccalaureate, prof. dev., non-degree credit 
800 In-service, prof. dev., limited graduate degree credit 
199/299/399 Special Studies 
 
Courses that may be taken repeatedly, with varying credit: 
At the 400/500/600 level: 
Research x01 Special Projects x06 
Independent Study x02 Seminar x07 
Thesis x03 Workshop x08 
Coop Ed/Intern x04 Practicum x09 
Reading & Conference x05 Selected Topics x10 
At the 800 level: 808 and 810 

GRADING SYSTEM
Grade Points Undergraduate Graduate 

 A 4.00 Excellent Excellent 
 B 3.00 Good Satisfactory 
 C 2.00 Satisfactory Below Standards 
 D 1.00 Inferior Failure (no credit) 
 F 0.00 Failure Failure 
 +/- 0.33 Plus or minus 0.33 points to letter grade, 

excluding A+ and F (effective Fall 1992)  

MARKING SYSTEM (all disregarded in GPA) 
 I Incomplete: mark is permanent after one calendar year 
 IP In-Progress: select graduate courses and UNST 421 
 P Pass: undergraduate C- or better, graduate B- or better 
 NP No Pass 
 W Withdrawn with no penalty 
 X No Grade Received/No Basis For Grade 
 Y Invalid grade reported by instructor 
 AU Audit 
 M Missing Grade 

 

Appearing under the last column “R” (repeat) 
 E Excluded from GPA 
 I Included in GPA 

 

Note: W-suffix or “WIC” in course title denotes a Writing Intensive Course 

UNIVERSITY STUDIES PROGRAM (established Fall 1994) 
The Academic Requirements Committee of the Faculty Senate established 
that Freshman and Sophomore Inquiry credits transfer to other institutions 
as indicated below: 
 

One term of UNST 100-level (5 cr) 5 credits general elective 
Two terms of UNST 100-level (10 cr) 10 credits general elective 
Three terms of UNST 100-level (15 cr) 3 credits writing (WR 121), 4 

credits social science, 4 credits 
science, and 4 credits arts and 
letters 

One term of UNST 200-level (4 cr) 4 credits lower division writing: 
applies to PSU lower division 
writing requirement 

Under the Provisions of Public Law 93-380, the information 
provided in this document is not to be released to others without 
the written consent of the student. 

CREDITS 
Portland State University operates on the quarter system. Fall, 
Winter, and Spring terms are each approximately 11 weeks in 
length. Summer term courses vary in length from 4 to 14 weeks. 
 
REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADUATION 
A baccalaureate degree requires a minimum of 180 quarter hours 
and a 2.00 GPA. Forty-five credit hours is the normal minimum 
for each advanced degree. All advanced degree requirements are 
listed in the Portland State University Bulletin. Graduate degrees 
require a minimum 3.00 GPA.  
 
GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) 
No GPA is calculated for students last enrolled prior to Fall 1980. 
The cumulative GPA is determined by dividing the total quality 
points by the total credit hours for all terms. Only PSU work is 
used to calculate the GPA. Transfer credits are for information 
purposes only, and are not included in the GPA calculation. 

ARR 9/2013 

OTHER CODES
(Used prior to Summer 1991 on grade labels; appear left of credit hour) 
 AUD Audited Course 
 R or RPT Repeated Course 
 G, L, or GRD Graduate credit for 400 courses; not used 

after Summer 1990 
 H or HON Honors Course 
 E Credit by Examination 
Other codes are for internal use only. 
TERM CODES PREVIOUSLY USED 
 F Fall 
 W Winter 
 S Spring 
 U Summer 

Office of the Registrar
Post Office Box 751  Portland, OR 97207-0751 

(503) 725-3511  www.pdx.edu 
FICE ID: 003216 

AUTHENTICITY
An official transcript displays the seal of Portland State University and an 
official signature. Verification or further explanation of authenticity may be 
obtained by contacting the Office of the Registrar. 











 1 

 
 

OREGON REAL ESTATE BOARD 

CEP LOG - 2016 

 

 

 

4.4.16 Brian Greer APPROVED FACTS:  Mr. Geer explained that he owned 3 service master companies and has been in the disaster industry for many years.  He also 

explained that he provides education on the following topics:  disaster restoration, water damage, risk management, business ethics, and 

property management, which are considered acceptable course topics.   

DISCUSSION:  None 

MOTION TO APPROVE BRIAN GREER’S PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER BY 

DAVE KOCH 

SECOND BY CONI RATHBONE 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
4.4.16 John Estrem APPROVED FACTS:  Mr. Estrem appeared by phone and reviewed his qualifications which included providing education for approximately 15 

years.  He also explained he provides education on the topic of risk management, which is considered an acceptable course topic.  Chair 

Hermanski asked Mr. Estrem if he was aware of the record keeping requirements for continuing education providers and he responded 

that he was aware of the record keeping requirements.   

DISCUSSION:  None.   

MOTION TO APPROVE JOHN ESTREM’S PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER BY 

CONIE RATHBONE 

SECOND BY PAT IHNAT 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
6.6.16 Kenneth Holman WITHDRAWN Mr. Holman withdrew his petition and indicated his intention to re-petition the board as a trade association at a later date. 

6.6.16 CMPS Institute (Gibran 

Nicholas) 

APPROVED FACTS:  Chair Hermanski asked CMPS to summarize the basis of their petition.  Gibran Nicholas explained that CMPS Institute has 

provided education across the country and is approved in 10 states to provide CE to real estate agents.  Mr. Nicholas also explained 

CMPS Institute offers the following acceptable course topics:  advertising; regulation; consumer protection; real estate taxation; and 

finance.  Chair Hermanski asked if they were familiar with the record keeping requirements and Ms. Nicholas responded that they are 

familiar with the record keeping requirements 

DISCUSSION:  None. 

MOTION TO APPROVE CMPS INSTITUTE’S PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDCUATION PROVIDER 

BY MARCIA EDWARDS 

SECOND BY LAWNAE HUNTER 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE   

10.3.16 Michelle Moore APPROVED FACTS:  Ms. Moore explained that she had nine years of experience in providing continuing education courses covering the following 

topics: real estate consumer protection, risk management, dispute resolution, and negotiation, which are considered acceptable course 

topics. Dave Koch asked Ms. Moore if she was familiar with the record keeping requirements involved with being a provider and she 

responded that she was aware of the requirements. 
DISCUSSION:  None 

MOTION TO APPROVE BY DAVE KOCH 

SECOND BY LAWNAE HUNTER 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
12.05.16 Brix Law LLP  FACTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

III. 



HAGEDOLE
Text Box
AGENDA ITEM NO.IV. A.







 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS 
Reported 

9/15/16 through 11/14/16 
 
 

REVOCATIONS 
 
 
 
SUSPENSIONS 
 
 
 
REPRIMANDS 
 
Reed, Patricia (Central Point) Property Manager 200712176, Default Order dated November 14, 
2016, issuing a reprimand. 
 
CIVIL PENALTIES 
 
Expired — Late Renewal civil penalties are computed using each 30-day period as a single offense.  
The civil penalty for the first 30-day period can range from $100-$500, with each subsequent 30-day 
period ranging from $500-$1,000.  ORS 696.990 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 













  1 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 
REGULATION DIVISION REPORT 

December 5, 2016 
 

Regulation Division Manager:  Selina Barnes 
Compliance Specialists 3 (Compliance Coordinator):  Deanna Hewitt, Rob Pierce 
Financial Investigators (Investigator-Auditor):  Jeremy Brooks, Aaron Grimes,  

Frances Hlawatsch, Philip Johnson, Meghan Lewis  
Compliance Specialist 2:  Carolyn Kalb 
Compliance Specialists 1:  Denise Lewis, Lindsey Nunes, Danette Rozell 
Administrative Specialist:  Janae Beaver 
 
Division Overview 
 
The Regulation Division receives complaints and determines validity and assignment for 
investigation.  Investigators gather facts (from interviews and documents), prepare a detailed 
written report and submit to the Manager for review.  The Manager determines whether the 
evidence supports charging a person with a violation of Agency statutes or administrative rules, 
as well the appropriate resolution.  The Manager conducts settlement conferences to resolve 
cases without a contested case hearing.  If a hearing is requested, the investigator works with 
the Assistant Attorney General in preparing for and presenting the case at hearing. 
 
The Compliance Specialists are responsible for conducting:  mail-in audits of licensee’s clients’ 
trust accounts (CTA), expired activity investigations, background checks and self-administered 
compliance reviews.  They also respond to inquiries regarding regulations and filing complaints 
from the public, licensees, and other governmental agencies. 
 
Workload and Activity Indicators 
 

Current Cases In Below 
Status  

Average 
2015  

Average 
Q3 2016 

11/17/16  

Mail-in CTA Audits 65 59 39 

Renewal Investigation 6 5 8 

Background Check Investigation 7 9 10 

Complaint 44 40 54 

Investigation (& Pending 
Assignment to Investigator) 

55 66 63 

Admin Review 33 27 36 

Settlement Process 19 42 44 

Pending Admin Action 9 12 17 

Hearing 12 4 2 

Appeal 3 9 9 

 
The recruitment process for two Financial Investigator (Investigator-Auditor) positions is 
continuing.   
 
Selina Barnes will be presenting a class (1 hour) on REA Disciplinary Actions for the Willamette 
Association of Realtors in Albany on November 29, 2016 
 
For information on investigations resulting in administrative actions, please review the 
“Administrative Actions Summary” section of the Board packet. 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  

VII. B. 1. 



   

 

 

 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION  

December 5th, 2016  
 

 

Division Manager:   Michael Hanifin 

 

Section Overview: 

The Land Development Division reviews and approves filings related to condominiums, 

timeshares, subdivisions, manufactured home subdivisions, and membership campgrounds. The 

section reviews and approves the foundational documents creating these types of properties, as 

well as later amendments to those documents, to verify compliance with statutory requirements. 

We also issue the Disclosure Statement (sometimes referred to as a Public Report) required for 

sales of these interests to Oregonians. The Disclosure Statement summarizes key information 

about the condominium for the consumer, much like reading the window sticker when car 

shopping. 

 

Workload and Activity Indicators 

 

 

Filing activity in 2016 is up. By the end of September this year’s filings surpassed the total of all 

filings made last year. We continue to see quite a few smaller projects in the 2 to 6 unit range as 

infill continues in the Portland-Metro area. 

 

Current Projects 

 

Ongoing effort to improve upon division-specific forms and additional instructional materials. 

 

Updating land development procedures manual. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VII. B. 2.  



   

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION REPORT 

December 5, 2016 
 

Business & Technical Services Manager:  Anna Higley 

Accountant: Caty Karayel 

Systems Administrator: Tiffani Miller 

Program Analyst: Rus Putintsev 

Customer Service Manager: Madeline Alvarado 

Compliance Specialist: Tami Schemmel  

Licensing Specialist: Sue Davenhill  

Receptionist: Liz Hayes 
 

Section Overview 

The Administrative Services Division acts as support to the Agency.  This division manages 

budget/allotment preparation, accounting, purchasing and contracting, inventory control, facilities, 

payroll, special projects, Information Technology (IT), and licensing services. 

 

Licensing services include assisting real estate brokers, principal brokers, property managers and escrow 

agencies as they manage their licenses using eLicense, assisting customers as they process registered 

business names and branch office registrations in eLicense, registering membership campground 

contract brokers, completing license applicant criminal background check investigations, processing 

escrow licensing and security/bonding files, maintaining all licensing history records, electronic 

processing of fees, and providing general reception services.   

 

Elizabeth (Liz) Hayes has joined the Agency as a Receptionist. Liz Hayes many years of experience in 

office support, customer service and holds a real estate broker license in Oregon.  
 

Budget Update 

Revenue: The final revenue for the 13-15 biennium is $5.67 million.  The Agency ended the biennium 

with a $1.06 million ending balance. Projected revenue for the 15-17 biennium is $6.33 million, with 

projected expenses of $6.85 million*. The Agency will resource cash reserves for the $517,828 revenue 

deficit and projects an ending cash balance of $544,172. This equates to 1.8 months of operating 

expenditures; generally, fee supported agencies in Oregon are encouraged to have an ending balance of 

between 3-6 months of operating expenditures, depending on the timing of their expenditures and 

revenue generation cycles. 

 

Budget Preparation 2017-19 

Since the 2009-11 biennium operating costs have exceeded revenue. While the real estate market has 

experienced a recovery, licensure has not returned to pre-recession rates and is projected to remain flat 

over the next budget period. Though significant savings measures have been taken, the Agency has an 

average monthly revenue deficit of $21,576. The Agency will seek the first licensing related fee increase 

since the 1997-99 budget.   

 
 

 

 

*The 2015-17 Legislatively Approved Budget is $7.16 million. The Agency expects a total of $314,974 in remaining 

limitation at the end of the biennium (June 30, 2017), including: Personal Services limitation of $238,556 and Services & 

Supplies limitation of $76,418. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VII. B. 3. 



   

Licensing Statistics 

Total Licensee Counts by Month: 

Individuals (Persons) Aug Sep 

      

Broker – Total 13,821 14,019 

   Active 12,270 12,447 

   Inactive 1,551 1,572 

      

Principal Broker - Total 6,377 6,376 

   Active 6,015 6,004 

   Inactive 362 372 

      

ALL BROKERS Total 20,198 20,395 

   Active 18,285 18,451 

   Inactive 1,913 1,944 

      

Property Manager - Total 890 894 

   Active 820 828 

   Inactive 70 66 

      

MCC Salesperson 31 32 

MCC Broker 2 2 

      

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 21,121 21,323 

   Active 0 19,313 

   Inactive 0 2,010 

      

Facilities (Companies)     

REMO 5 6 

Registered Business Name 
(RBN) 3,320 3,341 

Registered Branch Office 
(RBO) 715 706 

Escrow Organization 47 47 

Escrow Branch  145 145 

PBLN 664 652 

PMLN 160 158 

CEP 320 322 

MCC Operator 25 25 

TOTAL FACILITIES 5,401 5,402 

      

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS & 
FACILITIES 26,522 26,725 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New Licenses by Month: 

Individuals (Persons) August Sept 

Broker 153 169 

Principal Broker 10 9 

TOTAL BROKERS 163 178 

Property Manager 13 8 

MCC Salesperson 1 2 

MCC Broker    

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 177 188 

Facilities (Companies)    

Continuing Education 
Provider (CEP) 2 1 

REMO    

Registered Business 
Name 21 24 

Registered Branch Office  5 4 

PBLN 3 4 

PMLN 2 1 

Escrow Organization 0 1 

Escrow Branch     

MCC Operator    

TOTAL FACILITIES 31 33 

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS & 
FACILITIES 210 223 

 


	WR (FUHRER).pdf
	wr 7.pdf
	27622772.pdf





